MEDICAL COLLEGES OF UNITED STATES AND CANADA,

(The Publishers are, toa t extent, indebted to the Illinols State Board of Health Report
and Conspectus for the College Information herein given. ]

EKEY TO NUMBERS USED IN THIS WORK.

ALABAMA.

100 Meprcal COLLEGE OF ALABAMA, Mobile, Ala. W. H. Sanders, M. D.,
Becretary, 12 8t Joseph street. Organized in 1859. Closed during the war
and re-opened in 1888, There were no graduates during the years 1862-68,
inclusive. ‘The faculty embraces eight professors, one assistant to the profes-
sor of obatetrics and diseases of women, three lecturers, and two demonstra-
tors. (See p. 10£1.) .

101* SovurHERK UsIvERSITY, MEDICAL DEPARTMENT, Greensboro, Ala, Organ-
ized in 1872. Extinct; last session closed in 1880.%

ARKH ANBAS.

102 Amxawsag INpusTRIAL UNIvERsiTY, MEDICAL DEPARTMENT, Little Rock,
Ark. J. A. Dibrell, jr., Dean; R. G. Jennings, M. D., SBecretary of the Fac-
ulty. Organized fn 1879, First class graduated in 1880. Classes have gradu-

each su uent year. The faculty embraces fourteen professors and
lecturers, and a demonstrator.

CALIFORNIA.

108  CoorEr MEpICcAL CoLLEGE, Ban Francisco, Cal. Henry Gibbons, Jr.,
M. D., Dean, 920 Geary street. Organized in 1850 as the Medical Department
of the University of the Pacific. Ceased to exist in 1884, but was revived in
1870, under the same nume. In 1872 it became the Medical Department of
University College of Ban Francisco, and was given the specific designation
of the Medical College of the Pacific. In 1882 the imstitution ved its
present name. The first class was graduated in 1880. No classes were grad-
uated in the years 1865-69, inclusive. A class was imd\m!ed in 1870 and in
each subsequent year. Facully embraces twelve chairs, two adjuncts and
demonstrators each of anatomy and pathology.

104 UniversiTy oF CaLrpoRNRIA, MEDICAL DEPARTMENT (Toland Medical
College), San Francisco, Cal. Robert A. McLean, M.D., Dean, 608 Merchant
street, Organized in 1868 as the Toland Medical College. Became connected
with the University of California in 1872. The faculty embraces thirteen
professors, one adjunct, four assistants, one curator and the dispensary staff.
(See p. 1141.)

1044* CarrrorNia MEDpICAL BoCiETy AND COLLEGE oF PHYsICIANS, San Fran-
cisco, Cal. Incorporated Oct. 21st, 1876. Extinct.®

105 CaurrorrRia Mepicar CoLneeE (Eclectic), Oakland, Cal. D. Maclean,
M. D., Dean, 406 Powell street. Organized in 1879. The first class was
graduated in 1880. The faculty embraces nine professors and a demonstra-
tor.

106 HAENEMANN MEDICAL COLLRGE oF SAN FraNcisco (Homceopathic), San
Francisco, Cal. C. B. Currier, M, D., Dean, 921 (eary street. Organized
in 1884, i‘a.cu]ty embraces sixteen ?mfasmru, one adjunct, one demonstrator
of anatomy and one demonstrator of obstetrics.

'awﬂ#qf;cdiplom MWMMMMN@M};%;H'LM#
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100 MEDICAL AND BURGICAL

1064* UxiveErsiTY oF SoUTHERN CALIFORNIA, COLLEGE oF MEDICINE, Los
Angeles, Cal. J. P. Widney, M. D., Dean, Los Angeles. Organized 1334
The faculty embraces eighteen pro!essom and a demounstrator o anatomy.*

COLORADO.

107  University oF DENVER, MEDICAL DEPARTMENT, Denver, Col. Samuel
A, Figk, M. D., Secretary, 878 Curtis street. Organized in 1881. First class
graduated in 1882, The facully embraces fourteen professors, three lecturera
and a demonstrator.

108 UniversiTY oF CoLORADO, MEDICAL DEPARTMENT, Boulder, Col. T A
Sewall, M. D., President of the Faculty. Organized in 1838. The faculty
embraces seven professors.

CONNECTICUT.

109 Yare CoLLeeE, MEDicaL DEpPARTMENT, New Haven, Coon. H. E.
8mith, M. D., Dean of the Faculty. Organized in 1810 as the Medical Inati-
tution of Yale College. In 1879 a new charter changed the titls to the present
reading. The faculty embraces eight professors, seven lecturers and one
demonstrator. (See p. 979.)

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA.

110 NatiovaL Mepicar CoLrLEcE, MEDICAL DEPARTMENT COLUMBIAN UNI-
vERSITY, Wasbiogton, D. C. A. F. A, King, M. D., Dean, 726 Thirteenth
street. Organized in 1821, as the Medical Department of Columbian C‘olleg;&.
It was also authorized to use the title of National Medical College. 1878
Columbian College became Columbian University. The first class was
ated in 1822, Operations were suspended from 1834 to 1888, and from 1331
1o 1868. With these uxceptions, classes have been graduated each year since
ite founding. The faculty embraces seven professors, one assistant and five
demonstrators.

NOTE.—As no complete list of the d':phmm granted by this college could be obtained,

the names of physicians appearing in the following pages, and represented as being ils
graduates, have not been verified ga all cases.

111 Um\mualw OF GEORGETOWN, MEDICAL DEPARTMENRT, Washington, D. C.
J. W. H. Lovejoy, M. D., Dean, No. 800 Twelfth street, N. W. Organized
in 1850. Firat clnes reduated in 1851 ; classeshave been graduated each sub-
sequent year. Faculty embraces seven professors, four clinical professors,
two lecturers snl:l a demonstrator.

112 Howarp UNIVERSITY, MEDICAL DEPARTMENT, Wuhingélon. D. C.
Charles B. Purvis, M. D., Secretary, 1118 Thirteenth street. nized io
1887. The tirst class graduated in 1871, and classes have been uated each
subsequent year. The faculty embraces ten professors, two lecturers, and a
demonstrator.

113 NatroNaL Universiry, MEDICAL DEPARTMERT, Washington, D.C. H. H.
Barker, M. D., Dean, 1116 H Street, N. W. Organized in 1884. First class
was gradusted in 1883. The faculty consists of seven professorsand one
demonstrator,

FLORIDA.

114* UNIVERsITY OF FLORIDA, MEDICAL DEPARTMENT. Removed to Jackson-
ville from Tallahassee, in 1885. J. T. Bernard, Tallahasse, Secretary ; Rev. J.
Kost, M. D., L. L. D., Chancellor of the Uni?&r&:t}r‘ Prof. T. O. Bummers.
M. D., Dean of the Medical Faculty, Jacksonville. Organized in 1888, The
medical faculty embraces eight professors and one demonstrator. Graduated
wedical classes yearly.®

4 list of the di; nted by this could be oblat: all the names
thac:a::w pm_?' Ing p«g»u°l|l A undmmnred as being graduates, m&f
not be d.
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GEORGIA.

115  MepicaL COLLEGE OF GEORGIA, Augusts, Ga. Edward Qeddiogs, M. D.,
Dean. Organized in 1829, as a medical Academy, and bas been in constant
operation ever since, except during the period of the war. In 1878 it became
the Medical Department of the State University of Georgia.

NOTE—As the list of the diplomas ted by this college could only be obiained up
: . ol 3
S N Tt T T e

116* SoutrERRN Borawico-Mepicar CoLieer, Forsyth—Macon, Ga. Organ-
ized in 1889 at Forsyth. Removed to Macon in1846. First class graduated
in 1841, and classes were uated each year unti] 1854, when the name was
changed to the Reform Medical College of Georgia.®

117* TrowureoNiaN CoLLEGE, Barbourville, Ga. Organized about 1850,
Extinct.*

118* BavanNxaH MEDICAL GOLLEGE, Bavannah, Ga. Orgaﬂ:r.ed in 1858. Bus-
pended during the civil war, 1861-86. Extinct since 1530.*

119*  RerorM MepicAL CoLLEGE OF GEORGrA, Macon, Ga. Organized in
1854, as the successor of the SBouthern Botanico-Medical College. Classes
were graduated every year until 1881 ; suspended during the civil war ;
resumed in 1867 ; classes graduated in 1868 and each subsequent year until
1874, when the school assumed the name of the College of American Medicine
and Surgery.*

120 ATLANTA MEDICAL CoOLLEGE, Atlanta, Ga. James A. Gray, M. D.,
Proctor of the College. Oﬁniuﬂi in 1854, Closed during the rebellion,
1861-85. Reorgani in 1885. Clasdes were graduated from 1855 to 1861,
inclusive, and each subsequent year. The faculty embraces elght professors,
three assistants, three lecturers, and one demonstrator.

121* OcLETHORPE MEDICAL COLLEGE, Bavannah, Gs. Organized in 1855, and
continued its sessionsuntil 1861, Resumed in 1886 ; continued lectures until
1879, when it suspended.*

122* CoLLEGE OF AMERICAN MEDICINE AND BURGERY, Atlanta, Ga. Organized
in 1874 as successor to the Reform Medical College at Macon., Removed to
Atlanta in 1881. The first class under this name was graduated in 1874.
There waa no graduatiog class in 1877, *78, "70, '80 or 81. In 1884 the insti
tution was merged into the Georgia Eclectic Medical College.*

123 GeoRelA EcLEcTic MEDICAL COLLEGE, Atlanta, Ga. Joseph Adolphus.
M. D., Dean of the Faculty. Organized in 1877. The first class was gradu-
ated in March, 1878, and classes have been graduated each subsequent year.
The faculty embraces nine professors and one demoanstrator.

14 SouTHERN MEDICAL COLLEGE, Atlanta, Ga. Wm. Perrin Nicholson, M.
D., Dean, P. O. box No. 284. Organized 1879. Faculty embraces nine pro-
fessors, four lecturers,"one assistant to the chair of anatomy and demonstra-
tor. (See oppp. 409.)

1%5*  Crark UNTVERSITY, MEDICAL DEPARTMENT, Atlanta, Ga. David Moury
M. D., Dean of the Faculty. Now being organized.

ILLINOIS,

128  Rusm Mepicar CoLregE, Chicage, Ill. James H. Etheridge, A. M., M.
D., Secretary, 1684 Michigan avenue. Organized in 1843. First class gradu-
ated in 1848, and classes have been graduated each year subsequently, Fac-
ulty embraces twelve professors, three professors of special departments and
sixteen adjunct professors, lecturers and assistants, and demonstrators, (Ses
p. 995.) ;

127 MepicAL DePARTMERT, ILLTNOI8 CoLLEGE, Jacksonville, IIl. Organized
in 1848, Suspended lectures in 1848.%

. this could
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128* UN1veRsITY OF ST. CHARLES, MEDICAL DEPARTMENT, Bt. Charles, Ill.
Organized in 1847. Annual courses of lectures were delivered until 1848,
when the institution was trapsferred to Rock Island, and subsequently. in
1850, to Keokuk, Iowa, when it became the Medical Department of the Uni-
versity of lowa, now the College of Physicians and SBurgeons of Keokuk, Ia.*

120* Rock IsLanp Mebical Correek, Rock Island, Il O;ganized in 1849,
Lectures were delivered during the years 1840-50. Extinet.

180* Cmcaco MeprcaL CoLLEGE (Medical Department of the Northwestern
University), Chlcago, I1l. Walter Hay, M. D., LL. D., Secretary, 248 Buate
street. rganized in 1850, as the Medical Department of Lind University, it
continned under that name until 1884, when, severing this connection, it
assumed the name of the Chicago Medical College. The school entered into
ita present university relations in 1889. The faculty embraces eighteen pro-
fessors, five lecturers and a demonstrator.®

181 HanNEMANN MEpicaL CoLLEGE AND Hosprrayn, Chicago, Ill. E. 8.
Balley, M. D., Registrar, 3084 Michigan avenue. Organized in 1851. The
first class was uated in 1880. Classes have been graduated each subse-

uent year. The faculty embraces fourteen professors and five adjunct pro-
eseors. (Ses p. 993.)

182 BENKETT CoLLEGE oF EcLRcTic MEDICINE AND BURGERY, Chicago, Ill,
Milton Jay, M. D., Dean, 128 State street. Organized in 18658. The first
class was graduated in 1889. Classes have been graduated each subsequent

ear. The facultg;onsism of fourteen professors, two demonstrators and
¥our nagistants. (See p. 1001.)

188* Epineure UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO AND Br. Louls, Chicago, I1l. Incor-
Eﬁwﬂ %epr..ember 28, 1870, under the general incorporation act of the State,
net.

184* Woman’s MEpicaL CoLLEGE oF CHicAco, Chicago, Ill. Marie J. Merg-
ler, M. D., Secretary, 28 N. Throop street. Organized fn 1870. The first
class was graduated in 1871. No class was graduated in 1873, Classes have
been graduated each subsequent year. The faculty embraces seventeen pro-
fessors, three lecturers, one assistant and two demonstrators.* (Sse p. 999.)

185 Caicaao Hou@oraTHIC MEDICAL CoLLEGE, Chicago, Ill. J. R Kippax,
M. D., Eecretm;y. 8154 lodiana avenue. Organized in 1876. The first class
was graduated in 1877. Classes have been graduated each subseguent year.
The faculty embraces fifteen professors, three locturers and one demonstrator.

186 CoLLEGE OF PHYSICIANS AND Bumaroxe oF CHicaao, Chicago, Ill. D.
A. K. Steele, M. D,, Secratary, 1801 State street. Organized in 1882, The
first class was uated in 1883, Classes have been graduated each subse-
quent year, e faculty consists of twenty-three professors, seven lecturers
and three demonstrators, (See p. 997.)

137* QuiNcy CoLLEGE oF MepiciNE (Medical Department of Chaddock Col-
lege).géliucy, IIl. M. F. Bassett, M. D., Dean; L. H. Cohen, M. D., Secre-
tary, Vermont street. Organized in 1882. The faculty embraces twelve

professors and one demonstrator.*

1874* Prvero-MEevicaL InstituTe, Chicago, Ill. J. R. Blair, M. D., Dean,
Madison and La Balle streets. Organized 1885. The faculty embraces eight
professors and one demonstrator of anatomy.*

INDIANA.

188* UwiversiTy oF Ispiana, New Albany, Ind. Organized in 1888
Extinct.*

189* INDIANA MeDIcAL CorLecE, La Porte, Ind. Organized in 1844, Lec-
tures were continued at this college until 1848, when.the fostitution was
‘removed-to St. Charles, Ill., thence to Rock Island, Ill., in 1849, and finally
to Keokuk, Iowa, where it remains as the college of Physicians and Surgeons
of Keoknk *

ey the diplomas thia colloge could be obtained, all the mames of

p\méﬁ%hﬁe!ﬂ nﬂp:zu.mwmwu mtec‘la:{
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140* MEDICAL COLLEGE OF EvaNsviLLE, Evanaville, Ind. Organized in 1849.
Classes were vated during the yeara 18560 to 1854, inclusive, numbering
44 alumni. ures were suspended from 1834 to 1871. The colleqa was
reorganized in 1871, and classes were graduated from 1878 to 1884, inclusive,
when the institution suspended.®

i404* IxpIANA CENTRAL MEDICAL CoLLEGE (Medical Department Asbury Uni- -
versity, Greencastle, Ind.), Indianapolis, Ind. Organized in 1850. Extinct
since 1854.*

141 Paysio-MEDICAL COLLEGE OF INDIANA, Indianapolis, Ind. C. T. Bed-
ford, M. D., Secretary, 280 Massachusetts avenue. Organized in 1878, The
first class was uated In 1874. Classes bave been duated each subse-
quent year. The faculty embraces ten professors and three lecturers, and
one demonstrator. (Ses p. 1015.)

142* Mgepical CoLLEGE oF ForT WAYNE, Fort Wayne, Ind. Organized in
1876. Classes were graduated in each year from 1877 to 1848, inclusive.
Extinet.*

143  Meprcar CoLLEGE oF INDIANA, Indianapolis, Ind. C. E. Wright, M.D.,
Secretary, 107 N. Alabama street. Organized in 1878, when the Indiana
Medical College (organized in 1868) and the College of Physicians and Bur-
feoas of Indiana (organized in 1878) were united to form thiscollege. It was
ormerly the Medical Department of Butler University, but severed its con-
pection with that institution in 1883. The faculty embraces twelve profes-
fors, four lecturers, six assistants, a curator and one demonstrator.

144 CeERTRAL COLLEGE OF PHY8ICIANs AND BURaEoNs, Indianapolis, Ind. J.
O. Btillson, M. D., Becretary, 197 N. Delaware street. Organized in 1879.
The first class was graduated in 1880, The faculty embraces ten professors,
one lecturer, one adjunct professor, two demonstrators and one prosector.

145 ForT WAYNE CoLLEGE oF MEeDICINE, Fort Wayne, Ind, C. B. Stemen,
M. D., Dean, 281 W. Wayne street. Organized in 1879. The first class was
graduated in 1880. The faculty embraces sixteen professors, one lecturer
and seven assistants,

146 Inpiara Ecrectic MeEDpIcAL CoLLEcE, Indianapolis, Ind. L. Abbett,
M. D., Dean, 81} Virginia avenue. Organized in 1880. Beach Medical Col-
lege was merged into this institution in 1886, The faculty consiste of twelve
professors and one demonatrator,

146}* Contie PEvero-Mepicar IxetrToTE, Marion, Ind. D. B. Snodgrass, M.
D., Dean. Organized in 1881, The firat class was graduated in 1883, The
faculty embraces six professors.®

147 HosPiTal MEpicAL COLLEGE oF EvANsvILLE, Evansville, Ind. Charles
Enapp, M. D., Becretary. Organized in 1882. The first class was graduated
in 1888. The faculty consists of nine professors, two lecturers and one dem-
onstrator.

148* Beace Meprear CovLeer, Indianapolis, Ind. Organized in 1888. In
1884 the name was cbaoged to the Beach Medical Institute, and in 1886 the
college was merged into the Indiana Medical College.*

148¢* InpIANA COLLEGE OF MEDICINE AND MIDWIFERY (Department of Obstet-
rics, Indiana Eclectic Medical College). Chartered in 1878.* (Ses p. 1338.)

IOWA.

149  CoLLEGE oF PrYsiCcIANS AND Surceoxns, Keokuk, Iowa. J. C. Hughes,
M. D., Dean. Organized in 1849, four years after it became the Medical
Department of the University of Iowa at Keokuk. The first class was grad-
uated in 1850. Classes were graduated each subsequent year. The faculty
embraces ten professors, one lecturer and one demonstrator,

150* Iowa MepicaL CorLLrEee, Keokuk, Iowa. Organized in 1858. Extinct
since 1860.*

could be obta all the
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151 B81aTE UNIvERSITY OF lowa (Medical Department), Jowa City, Ia. W.
F. Peck, A.M., M. D., Dean; O. T, Gillett, Secretary of the Faculty., Organ-
ized in1870. The first class was graduated in 1871. Classes have been grad-

+ uated each subsequent year. The faculty embraces seven professors, one
demonstrator, four lecturers and one prosector. (Ses p. 1845.)

152 StaTE UNIvERsITY OF Iowa, HoM®oPATHIC MEDICAL DEPARTMENT,
Iowa City, Ia. A, C. Cowperthwaite, M. D., Dean of the Faculty. Organ-
ized in 1877. The first class was graduated in 1878 ; classes have been gradu-
ated each subsequent year. The faculty consists of three professors, three
lecturers, one curator and one assistant to the chair of materia medica. Onl
the therapeutlc branches, materia-medica, practice, surger{. obetetrics an
diseases of women are taught. The lectures on anntom{, physiology, chem-
E;&g,}etc., are delivered by the professors of the medical department. (See p.
1088,

158  Iowa MEebpicaL CorrEae—Eclectic. ﬁ edical Department of Drake Uni-
versity), Des Moines, Ia. I. W. Smart, M. D., Dean, 827 E. 5th st. Organ-
ized in 1881 as the Iowa Eclectic Medical College, Medical Department of
Drake University; assumed {ts present name in 1883. The first class was

raduated in 1884, The faculty embraces ten professors, two assistant pro-
essora, and three lecturers.

154 Iowa CoLLEGE oF PHYSICIANS AND BURa EoNs, Des Molnes, Ia. Lewis
Bchooler, M. D., Dean of the Facuity. Organized in 1882. The first class
was graduated in 1888. The faculty embraces thirteen professors and two
demonstrators. (See p. 10£9.)

156 Kme Ecrrcric MEpicAL CoLiEGE, Des Moines,Ia, O, H. P. S8hoemaker,
A. M., M. D., Dean, 819 Walout st. Organized in 1888. The first class
was graduated in 1884. The faculty embraces eighteen instructors.

K ANBAS,

156  UxiversiTy oF Kansas, MepicAL DEPARTMENT, Lawrence, Eas. J. A.
Lipginoun, D. D., Chancellor of the University. Organized in 1880. No
uates.

1564* Kawsas Mepical CorLeer, Independence, Kas. Was in operation
between the years 1878 and 1875 ; had two graduating classes. Extinct since
1875.%

KENTUCKY.

157% TRANsYLvANIA UxIvERsiTY, MEDICAL DEPARTMENT, Lexiogton, Ky.
Organized in 1817. Lectures were delivered at Lexington until 1859, when
the institution became extinct. From 1850 to 1859 lectures were delivered
during the summer only, the winter session being intermitted to establish the
Eentucky School of Medicine at Louisville.®

158 UniversiTy oF LouisviLLE, Mepican DerarTMENT, Louisville, Ky.
J. M. Bodine, M. D., Dean, Eighth and Chestnut Streets, Organized fn
1887. No lectures were delivered from June, 1862, to June, 1888, and no
class was graduated in 1868. The faculty embraces eight professors, one
lecturer, one demonstrator, two assistants, and five special demonstrators and
assistants. (Ses p 1017.)

1584* EcLecTic MEDICAL CoLLEGE, Louisville, Ky. Chartered by Legislature,
1848, Extinct.*

150 Eexrucky ScaooL oF MepiciNg, Louisville, Ky. Wm. H. Wathen, M.
D., Dean, Fourth Avenue and Chestout Street, Organized in 1850, The
first class was graduated in 1851. Classes have been graduated each subse-

uent year, e faculty embraces eight professors, three lecturers and one
emonstrator. (See p. 1019.)

*4s no list of the diplomas granted by (Ais college could be obtad ail tha mames 0f
aum‘aua in the following pages, and repr ted as being its gradueates, Aave
been 4
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180 LouvisvinLk Mepican CoLrear, Louisville, Ky, C. W. Kelley, M. D.
Registrar, Second and Green Btreets. J. A. Ireland, M. D., Dean.” Organ-
ized in 1869, The first class was graduated in 1870. Classes have been grad-
uated each subeequent year. The faculty embraces nine professors, four
lecturers and one demonstrator.

161  HosprTaL CoLLEGE OF MEeDICINE, Medical Department, Central Univer-
sity, Louisville, Ky. BSamuel Ayres, M. D., Dean, 408 Third Avenue.
Organized in 1878. The first class was graduated in 1875. Classes have been
fnduated each subsequent year. The faculty embraces eight professors, two

ecturers, six assigtants and one demonstrator.

1614* JerrERsON BcHooL oF MEDICINE, Louisville, Ky. Organized in 1882,
This school graduated one class (in 1882), and then suspended operations.*

LOUISIANA.

162  Tuvrang UxiversrrY, MepicaL DEPARTMENT, New Orleans, La. Stan-
ford E. Chaille, M. D., Dean of the Faculty, P. O. Drawer 261. Organized
in 1834 as the Medical College of Louisiana, and became in 1847 the Medical
Department of the Uaivenily of Louisiana. The civil war caused a suspen-
sfon of its sessions in 1888, '84 and '65, but its instruction was resumed the
session of 1865-'68, and continued annually since. The faculty embraces
eight professors, who are aided by one lecturer, & demonstrator and seven
chiefs of clinice. In 1885, by act of the Legislature, the name, University of
Louisiana, was changed to the Tulane University of Louisiana.

183* Nzw ORLEANS 8cHooL oF MEDICINE, New Orleans, La. Organized in
1858. Extloct since April, 1870.% H

184* Cmarrry HosPiTAL MEDICAL COLLEGE, New Orleans, La. Organized in
1878. Extioct since 1877.%

165* MepicaL DEPARTMENT oF THE NEwW ORLEANS UNIvERsITY, MEDICAL
DxPARTMENT OF STRAIGHT UnivirsiTy, New Orleans, La. Both are for
colored students, and open to males and females. No records of any medi-
cal diplomas having been issued from either.*

MAINE.
186  Mepican ScHOOL oF MAINE, AT Bowpomn CoLLEGE, Brunswick, Me.
Alfred Mitchell, M. D., Becretary. Organized in 1820. The first class was
usled in 1821. Classes have been graduatled each subsequent year. The
aculty embraces nine professors and two demonstralors.

167 PorTLAND ScHooL FoR Mepicar INsrructioN, Portland, Me. C. O.
Hunt, M. D., Registrar. Organized in 1855. No diplomas are conferred.
**The aim of the achool is to afford to medical students greater facilities for
obtaining a higher grade of professional education than can usually be given
under the direction of a single preceptor.” The facuity embraces ten
instructors and one demonstrator.

188* Ecrecric MebicaL CoLiEeeE oF Maine, Lewiston, Me. Organized in
1881, to **supply a demand for Eclectic medical teaching in New England.”
The first clasa was graduated in 1882. Faculty embraces eight professors.*

188;* Tar Druipic UniversiTy oF MAINE, Lewiston, Me, C. P. Davidson,
M. D., Rector, Lewiston, Me. Organized In 1874, The faculty embraces
nine professors and one demonstrator of electricity and magnetism.*

MARYLAND.

169 UXIVERSITY 0OF MARYLAND ScmHoon oF MEDICINE, Baltimore, Md, L.
McLaoe Tiffany, M. D., Dean, 187 Park avenue. Organized in 1807, as the
Medical Uollege. in the city of Baltimore. In 1812, faculties of law, theology
and arts were added, and the whole chartered under Lthe name of the Univer-
sity of Maryland, The degree of M. D. was first conferred in 1810, and
degrees have been conferred each year since. The faculty embraces eleven
professors, four lecturers, five demonstrators, three prosectors, and teu dis-
pensary physicians and chiefa of clinics.

*ds no list of the lomas nted by this college conld be oblai all the names o
ﬂmt::m‘;ﬁﬂ gl‘pm!omnap:gumd represented as being ifs graduates, hm;:
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170* WasaiNaToN UNIvkRsiTY BcHOOL OF MEDICINE, Baltimore, Md. Organ.
ized in 1827, as the Medical Department of Washington College, Pennsylva-
nia. The first class was gradusted in 1828, and classes were graduated under
the auspices of Washington College until 1840, when the Mar_&lzgd Legisla-
ture empowered the institution to assume the above title. tures were
delivered and classes graduated until 1851, when it became extinct. In 1867
the institution was reorganized, and lectures were thence delivered until 1877,
;:110? the iesutution was merged into the College of Physicians and Burgeons,

timore.

i CoLLEGE oF PHYSICIANS AND BuraroNs, Baltimore, Md. Thomas Opie,
M. D., Dean, 107 North Howard street. Organized in 1872. The first class
was graduated in 1878. Classes have been graduated each su uent year.
In 1877 the Washington University School of Medicine was united with this
college. The facully embraces ten professors, two auxiliary profeasors, six
lecturers and six demonstrators,

172 BartmMoRE MEDICAL COLLEGE, Baltimore, Md. Wm. Lee, M. D., Dean,
Eutaw and Hoffman streets. Organized in 1881, The first class was gradu-
ated in 1882. The fuculty embraces twelve professors, two lecturers and
one demonstrator,

178 BarTiMorE UNIVERsTY ScHooL oF MEDICINE, Baltimore, Md. Z. K.
Wiley, M. D., Dean, 185 West Lombard street. Owing to dissensions in the
Baltimore Medical College, after the close of its session of 1883-84 a charter
was oblained under the above title for this school, which graduated its first
class in 1885, The faculty embraces twelve professors, one demonstrator and
three clinical assistants.

174 Wouax's MEpicAL COLLEGE OF BALTIMORE, Baltimore, Md. Richard
Henry Thomas, M. D., Dean, 207 North Howard street. Organized in 1882.
The first class was graduated in 1888. The faculty embraces eight professors,
five lecturers, one demonstrator, three instructors and elevzn clinical assist-
ants,

175 MEepicAL DEPARTMERT oF THE JoHN8S HoPEINS UNIVERSITY, Baltimore,
Md. D. C. Gilman, LL, D., President of the University. A preliminar
course of training for young men who propose to pursue the study of medi-
cine was instituted in 1877. The course leads to the university degree of
Bachelor of Arts.

MASSACHUSETTS.

176 Harvarp Universrry, Mepicar Scroon, Boston, Mass, H, B. Bow-
ditch, M. D., Dean, Boylston and Exeter sts. Organized in 1782. The first
class was graduated in 1783, and classes have been graduated in each subse-
quent year. The instruction is given by ten professors, seven assistant pro-
fessors, nine instructors, one lecturer, three demonstrators, nine assistants to
chairs, one curator, and fifteen special clinical instructors. The faculty is
composed of the professors. assistant professors, and others whose term of
appointment is longer than for one year.

17r* DBerrsame MepicaL CoriLEceE (Medical Department of Willlams Col-
lege), Pittsfield, Mass. Organized in 1824. Lectures were delivered uantil
1867, when the college became extinct. During its existence 1138 students
were graduated. ®

178* WorcesTER MEDICAL CoLLEGE (Eclectic), Worcester, Mass. Organized
in 1845 Lecturea were delivered until 1858, when the college me
extioct.* .

179* New Exeranp Femare Mepican CoLLeeE, Boston, Mass. Organized
in 1848. Lectures were delivered and classes graduated until 1874, when it
was merged into the Boston University School of Medicine.*

*As no list of the diplomas nted by this college could be obiained, all the names of
ph:rﬂ‘cium uﬁp;w-fng in the following pages, and represented aa being its graduates, have
wot been verified.
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Boeron UR1vERSITY 8cEOOL OF MEDICINE (Homaopathic), Boston, Masa,,
1 Tisdale Talbot, M. D., Dean, 68 Marlborough street. Organized in 1878,
The first class was graduated in 1874. Classes have been graduated each
subsequent year. In 1874 the New England Female Medical College was
united with this school. The faculty embraces eleven professors, thirteen
lecturers, three assist and ope d rator.

181* CoLLEGE oF PHYsICIAR®S AND SuURGEoRs, Boston, Mass.” W, H. Fales,
M. D., Registrar, 788 Tremont street, Organized in 1880. The first class
was uated in 1881. .The faculty embraces nine Profmurs.- nine lecturers,
four Instructors, one demonstrator and three clinical assistants.*

182* Negw ERGLAND UNIVERSITY OF ARTS AND BcieNces, Boston, Mass
Extinct since 1881.*

183* BrLLEVUE MEDICAL COLLEGE OF MASSACHUSETTS, Boston, Mass. Organ-
ized in 1880. Charter repealed in 1883.%

134" Mepical, DEPARTMENT OF THE AMERICAN UNxivererty oF Boeron.
Extinct 1883.*

aél;mr MepicAL CoLLEGE oF THE AMERICAN HEALTH SociETY. Extinct
1 5
*ExceLsioR MEDIcAL CoLLEnE., Extinct 1888,

MICHIGAN.

185 URIVERSITY OF MIcRIGAN, DEPARTMENT OF MEDICIKE AND BURGERY,
Ann Arbor, Mich, A. B. Palmer, M. D., Dean. Organized in 1850, The
first class was graduated in 1851. Classes have been graduated each subse-
quent year. The fatully embraces eleven professors, six assistants to the
professors, two demoustrators, one instructor and curalor, one house physl-
cian and surgeon, and one ward master of the University Hospital.

185 DeTtrorr CoLLEGE oF MEDICINE, Detroit, Mich, Theo. A. McGraw,
M. D., Pres.; Chas. J. Lundy, M. D., Secretary of the Faculty. Formed
through the consolidation, in 1885, of the Michigan College of Medicine with
the Detroit Medical College. The faculty embraces twenty-eight professors
and eight assistants, two lecturers and two demoustrators.

18  DerroiT MEDpicAL CoLLEGE, Detroit, Mich. Organized in 1888. The first
class was graduated in 1869. Claszes have been graduated each su uent
year until its consolidation, in 1883, with the Michigan College of Medicine
under the name of the Detroit College of Medicine.

1884* Lansine Homeorarnic Mepicar ConLeek, Lansiog, Mich. Incorpor-
ated, 1871. Extinct since 1878.*

187" DeTrOIT HoMa@oraTHIC MEDICAL CoLLEGE, Detroit, Mich. Organized
in 1871. [Extinct since 1876.

188  Uriversrry oF MicaIcAN, HoM@oraTAIC MEDICAL COLLEGE, Ann Arbor,
Mich. H. L. Obetz, M.D., Dean. Organized in 1875. The flrst class waa
graduated in 1877, Classes bave been graduated each subsequent year. The
faculty embraces four professors, one associate professor, and & resident phy-
sician and surgeon in hospital. Five professors of the department of l'.noc:fr
cine and surgery (regular school) give instruction to homceopathic students,

18  Micmiean CoLiree oF MepiciNg, Detroit, Mich. J. B. Book, M. D,,
strar, 68 Fort St. w. Organized in 1880. First class was graduated in
1881, and a class has been graduated each year since. In 1885 the coll
amalgamated with the Detroit Medical College under the name Detrolt Col-
lege of Medicine.

HINNESOTA.

190*  Wixona MepIcAL ScaooL, Winons, Minn. Organized in 1872. Extinct.
No diplomas were iasued, it being a school of instruction only.*

*4s no list of the diplomas granted by this college comld be obt all the names of
Dhteicizas appeartag n. the J Fnring pages and regresented as being: s graductos Ao
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191 Miswvesora Hospitar CoLLEGE. Minneapolis, Mino. F. A. Dunsmoor,
M. D., Dean of the Cnllege. Organized in 1885. The faculty embraces
twenty professors and one demonstrator. (See opp. p. 514.)

1914* MinnearoLiz CoLLEGE oF PHYSICIANR AND Sunarons, Minneapolis,
Minn, J. T. Moore, M. D., Dean of the Faculty, 81 Washington ave. s.
First class was was graduated in the spring of 13{5 The faculty embraces
thirteen professors and u demonstrator of anatomy.*

192 UxiversiTYy oF MinNEsoTA, MEDICAL DEPARTMENT, Minneapolis, Minn.
Cyrus Northrop, L.L. D., ex-officio President. Perry H. Millard, M. D.,
Secretary. Orgapized in 1888. Examining faculty only. Conferd es of
M. B. and M. D. Requirements very high. The faculty embraces nine pro-
fessors, This department is organized by the ots of the University,
under their charter empowering them to grant degrees in medicine. o
instruction is offered in thia college. The fncnll.i' is an examining body only.
The law rpgulm.ing the practice of medicine in Minnesota makes this ¥scull.y
also the ** State Medical exsmlnln%oBonrd." with powers and duties similar
to those conferred upon the State Board of Health of Illinois by the Illinois
medical practice act—that is, to examine into the qualifications of those prac-
ticing medicine In the 8tate not exempt from the provisions of the act by
reason of length of time of practice therein, and to issue certificates entitling
to such practice: (1) to thoss who establish the fact of gradustion from a
legally chartered medical institution in good standing with the board; and
(2) to those, not being graduates from recognized Institutions, that can pass a
satlsfactory examination.

1924* 81. Paun MeprcaL CoLLEGE, 8t. Paul, Minn, LeGrand N. Denslow, M.
D., Becretary of the Faculty. Organized in 1885. It has four departments,
Medicine, Pharmacy, Dentistry and Veterinary- Medicine. The Medica)
Department has ten professors in the regular branches and elght in specia)
branches, also four adjuncts.®

MISSOURI.

193 Miesouri MEpicAL CoLLEGE, St. Louis, Mo, T. F. Prewitt, M. D., Dean,
corner Twenty-second and Olive streets. Organized in 1840 as the Medical
Department of Eemper College. 1n 1845 it became the Medical Department
of the University of Missouri. In 1855 it mssumed its present name, The
firet class was graduated in 1841. It was suspended during the war, and no
studenta were graduated in 1862, "68, "84 or '65. It iz somelimes called after
its founder, The McDowell Medical College. The faculty embraces twelve
professors, two adjunct professors, two leclurers, three demonstrators and
one clinical assistant. (Ses opp. p. 556.)

194 8t. Louis Mepicar CoLLEaE, St Louis, Mo. J. 8. B. Alleyne, M. D.,
Dean, 8132 Washington avenue. Organized in 1841, as the Medical Depart-
ment of the St. Louis University. In 1855 it was chartered as an independens
institution under its pretent name. The first class was gradusted in 1843,
Classes have been graduated each subsequent year. The faculty embraces
ten professors, ten lecturers, three demonstratore, two clinical assistants and
a prosector of anatomy,

195* Uxiverseey oF THE STATE oF Missourr, MepicaL 8croor, Columbia,
Mo. J. G. Norwood. M. D. Dean. Organized in 1845. The first class was
graduated in 1846. From 1845 to 1855 the Medical Department was situated
at 8St. Louls. See Missouri Medical College. No degrees were conferred
during the war, 1861-65. Faculty embraces eight professors, six lecturers
and four examiners for medical degrees, appointed from as many district
medical societies.®

196* HumsoLpT MEDICAL CoLLEGE, St. Louis, Mo. Incorporated February
28, 1855, as the 8t. Louis College of Medicine and Natural Sciences. In 1860
it became the Humboldt Institute, a German college for the promotion of
natural sciences and medicine. It retained this name until 1886, when the

®4s no list of the dipl 1 by this collepe could be oblained, all the names of
phyricians appearing in the foifming pages, and represented as being ita graduates, have
wnot been nerm.
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§
present one was assumed, Before the lectures commenced for the session of
186-70, & split occurred in the faculty, a portion of which organized the Col-
lege o;n'l?yaiciana and Burgeons. Lectures discontinued after the session of
1868-70.

197 HomeoraTmic Mepicar CoLrear orF Missouri, St. Louis, Mo. J. T.
Eent, M. D. Registrar, 2309 Washington avenue. Organized originally in
1850; reorganized in 1882. Between Lhe years 1869 and 1881, the followin
homeeopathic colleges were organized in St. Louis, viz: The Bt. Louia Col-
lege of Homopathic Physicians and Surgeons. organized 1869; held two-
seasions and suspended after session of 1870-71. The Homceopatbic Medical
College of Bt. Louis, organized 1878. The Hering Medical College, ::Fn-
ized tn 1880. 1In 1880 a portion of the faculty of the Hommopathic Medicak
College of Missouri seceded and revived the Bt. Louis College of Homceo-
pathic Physicians and Surgeons, which again held two sessions; but after the
seasion of 1881-83 this college and the Hering were consolidaled with the
Homceopatbic Medical College of Missouri. The faculty of this college
embraces twelve professors and one lecturer.

188* [Eaxsas City Mepicat CoLLece, Kansas City, Mo. E. W. Bchauffler.
M. D., Dean. Orfnntud in 1869, as the College of Physicians and Bur-
ﬁ:s of Eansas City. The first class was graduated in 1870; classes have

uated each subsequent year. The school assumed ils present name
. **The faculty embraces eleven professors, one adjunct professor, two
lecturers, two demonstrators and one instructor.®

189* Br. Louis CorLLEGE oF Hom@oraTHiCc PHYSICIANS AND Buremons, St
Louis, Mo. Organlzed in 1889. Suspended after the session of 1B70-71. See-
Homeeopathic Medical College of Missouri.*

200* 8r. Loums EcrLEcTic MepicaL CoLLeGe, St. Louls, Mo. Organized in
1874. Extinct in 1888.*

201* HoMmoraTHIC MEDICAL COLLEGE OF 8T. Loots, 5t. Louis, Mo. Organ-
ized in 1878. Extinct since 1883.*

22  AmkricaN MEepical CoLLEGE (Eclectic), St. Louis. Mo. Geo. C. Pitzer,
M. D., Dean, 1110 Chambers street. Organized in 1878. The first clasa was
graduated in 1874. Classes were graduated twice annually from that date up-
to 1888, but only ope anwual gradusting session is now held. The faculty
embraces eight professors, Ihree lecturers and one demonstrator.

203* 8r. JosEra HosprraL MepicaL COLLEGE, Bt. Joseph, Mo. Organized in
1878. Five classes, containing forty-five students, were graduated. In 1882,
this college was merged into the 8t. Joseph Medical College.*

204* CoLLEGE oF PHYSICIANE AND BURGEONS OF ST. JosEPH, Bt. Joseph, Mo.
Organized in 1878, Three classes, containing fifty students, were graduated..
In 1882, this college was merged into the St. Joseph Medical College.*

205  Br Louis CoLLEGE oF PHYSICIANS AND SBurerons, St. Louls, Mo. Louis
Bauer, M. D., Dean, 519 Pine street. Reorganized in 1879. The first class
WAS uated in 1880. The faculty embraces ten professors, five lecturers,
one demonstrator and one assistant. (Ses p. 10£3.)

208  JoPLiN CoLLEGE oF PHYBICIANS ARD Surcgoxs, Joplin, Mo. Organ-
ized in 1880. The first class was graduated in 1881. The school became
extinct in 1884.

Herixe MEepical CoLLEGE (Homwopathic), Bt. Louis, Mo. Organized in
1880. Bee Hommopathic Medical College of Mo.*

208 NorTEWESTERK MEDICAL CoLLEGE OoF BT. JosePrH, 8t. Joseph, Mo. F.
A, Simmons, M. D., Dean; J. P. Chespey, M. D., Secretary, Felix, bet Seventh
and Eighth streets. Organized in 1880. The first clase was graduated in
1881, ﬁ'he faculty embraces eight professors, two lecturers and one demon-
strator of anatomy,

"4As no list of the diplomas nted by this college comid be oblar all the names of
ﬂ‘lfgminu aj et ng in the folg:inp pages, and represented as being ifs graduates, have
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208* UxniversrrY oF KaNsas Crry, Mepical DepArTMENT, Kansas City, Mo.
J. E. Logan, M. D., Secretary, n w cor Twelfth and Main streets, Organ-
ized in 1881. The first class was graduated in 1882. The faculty embraces
seventeen professors, one adjunct professor and two lecturers.®

209&; asggn.m Meprcan CorieGg, Joplin, Mo. Organized in 1881. Extinct in

210  8r. JosepH MepicaL CoLieeE, Bt Joseph, Mo, Jacob Geiger, M. D.,
Dean, corner S8econd and Francis streets, Organized in 1882, by the union
of the 8t. Joseph Hospital Medical and the College of Physicians and Bur-
geons of Bt. Joseph, The first class graduated in 1883, ‘The faculty
embraces ten professors, thres lecturers and one demonstrator. (Sze p. 12£3.)

21 Earsas City HoepiTaL CoLLEGE oF MEDICINE, Eansas City, Mo. E.
@. Granville, M. D., Becretary of the faculty, 111 W Thirteenth street. Or-
ganized in 1882. The first class was graduated in 1883. The faculty
embraces eleven professors and one adjunct professor. (See p. 1051.)

212*  Womar's MeEDICAL CoLLEGE OF 8t Louis (Hemeopathic), 8t. Louis, Mo.
Organized in 1883, and after giving one course of lectures it became extinct.*

2124* OccrpENTAL CoLLEGE OF PHYsICIANS AND Suraeons, Joplin, Mo. J.
C. Petit, M. D., President. Incorporated, 1886.*

NEBRASKA.

214  OmamA MepIcAL CoLLEGE, Omsha, Neb, George B, Ayers, M. D., Sec-
retary, 1505 Farnam street. Organized in 1881. The outgrowth of a prepara-
tory school, established in 1880, under the name of the Nebraska School of
Med;cinje. The faculty embraces sixteen professors and a demonstrator. (Ses
p. 1347,

215 UnrveRrsiTY oF NEBRASEA, COLLEGE oF MEDICINE (Regular Department),
Lincoln, Neb. A. R. Mitchell, M, D., Dean. Orgx(mlzed in 1888. The
firat class was graduated in 1884. The faculty consists of nine professors and
four lecturers,

216  UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASEA, COLLEGE oF MEDICINE (Homaopathic Depart-
ment), Lincoln, Neb. Bartlett L. Paine, M. D., Dean. Organized in 1888,
First class graduated in 1884. Faculty consists of three professors and two
lecturers.

217 UxniversiTy oF NEBRASKA, COLLEGE 0F MEDICINE (Eelrctic tmend),
Lincoln, Neb. Organized in 1883. Firat class was graduated in 1884. Dis-
continued after session of 1884-85. [

NEW HAMPSHIRE,

218 DArRTMOUTH CoLLEGE, MEDICAL DEPARTMENT (New Hampshire Medical
Institute), Hanover, N. H. Carlton P. Frost, M. D., Dean. Organized in
1797. The first class was graduated in 1798. Classes have been graduated
each subsequent year. The faculty embraces ten profeasors and one instrue-
tor. (See p. 1057.)

219*  NEwW ExcLAND UNIVERSITY OF THE ARTS AND SciENcEs, Manchester, N.
H. ‘Incorporated 1878. Act Repealed 1877. Extinct.*

NEW JERSEY,

231* LivinesTor UNivErerry, Haddonfleld, N. J. Extinct.*

222* Hyceeo-THERAPEUTIC CoLLEGE, Bergen Heights, N. J. Extinct.*
NEW YORK,

228 CoLLEGE oF PHYsICIANS AND BURGEONS 18 THE CITY OF NEw YORE
(Medical Department of Columbia College), New York City. John G. Curtis,
M. D., Secretary, corner Twenty-third street and Fourth avenue, Organized
in 1807, by the vegents of the University of the State of New York, as their
medical department, under the oame of the College of Physicians and SBurg

e 4s no list of the diplomas nted by this college could be oblatned, all the names of
physicians a ring in the f ng pages, and represented as being il graduates, Aave
not been mm
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eonsin the City of New York. The institution was connected with the Col-
umbia College for a short period in 1814, and became permanently connected
with it in 1860, when the “‘Medical Dﬁpnrtment of Columbia College” was added
to the original title, The original Medical Department of Columbia College
was organized in 1767 ; it was suspended during the war of jthe revolution,
and became extinct in 1818. The first class was graduated by this college in
1811. Classes have been graduated each subsequent year. The faculty
embraces seventeen professors, one adjunct lecturer, two clinical lecturers,
three demonstrators, one director physiological laboratory, and twenty eight
clinical assistants.

24* CoLLEGE oF PHYSICIANS AND SURGEONS OF THE WESTERN DIsTRICT OF
New Yomx, Fairfield, N. Y. Organimd in 1812. Merged into the Albany
Medical College in 1841. During its existence it afforded instruction to 8,128
students and graduated 589.%

25* Nxw Mzepicaws InstiTuTion (Medical Department of Queen’s College, New
Jersey), New York City. Organized in 1514. Buspended in 1816, In 1828
the Medical Institution waa revived under the auspices of Rutger's (formerly
Queen’s) College, N. J., but became extinct in 1850.*

226* New Yok ReroRMED MEDICAL CoLLEGE (Eclectic), New York City.
Organized in 1834, Extinct 1838.*

227 New Yorx S8cmooL oF MEDICINE, New York City. Organized under the
auspices of the New York County Medical Soclety in 1881.#

238* AuBUrN MgepicaL BcHooL, Auburn, N. ¥, Extinct.*

29* Q@exeva Mepical CoLLEGE, G 8, N. Y. Organized in1880. Extinct.
Merged into the College of Medicine of Syracuse University in 1872.#

230  ArBany MepicaL CoLneer (Medical Department of Unlon University),
Albany, N. Y. Willis G. Tucker, M. D., Registrar, 4 Lancaster street.
Organized in 1838. The firet class was graduated in 1880. It became con-
nected with Union University in 1873, when the present title wus assumed,
The faculty embraces thirteen professors, one lecturer, one curator and one
demonstrator. (Ses p. 10£7.)

231 UxrversrtY or THE City of NEw York, Meprcar DerPARTMENT (Uni-
versity Medical College), New York City. Charles lnslee Pardee, M. D.,
Dean, 410 E. Twenty-sixth street. Organized in 1841. The first class was
ﬁduated in 1842, " Classes have been graduated each subsequent year.

e faculty embraces fifteen professors, six clinical professors, twenty assist-
ant instructors, two demonstrators and nineleen clinical assistants, (Seep. 963.)

232  UNIVERSITY oF BurFraro, Mepical DrerPArTMENT, Buffalo, N. Y.
Charles Cary, M. D., Becretary, 840 Delaware street. Organized in 1846,
The first class was graduated in 1847. Classes have been graduated each
smbsequent year. The faculty embraces twelve professors, one lecturer, one
demonstrator and eleven lecturers in the spring term.

28* New York Mepicar CorrLeck, New York City. Organized in 1850
Extinct since 1885.%

24* MepicaL CoLLeeE oF NEw York City, New York City. Extinct.*
285* ExcevrerorR MEpicaL CoLLgag, New York City. Extinct.*

26* MEeTROPOLITAN MEDICAL CoLLEGE (Heleciie) New York City. Organ-
ized, 1852, Incorporated, March, 1857. Charter repealed April 12, 1862.% .

271* SyracusE MEDICAL CoLLEGE (Eclectic), Syracuse, N. Y. Organized in
1850, Extinct, 1857.%

#38* RocmesTER EcLecric MeDIcaL CoLLEer, Rochester, N. Y. Organized
in 1848. Lectures delivered during three or four sessions. Extinet, fé’sa.*

Lona IsLanp CoLLEeE HoepiTAL, Brooklyn, N. Y. gor:ﬁ“im in 1860,

The first class was graduated in 1861, Classes have been uated each rub-

*4s no list of the di ted by this college could be all the nomes of
phyicians the following pages, and Bdeing ifs graduates, have
mmw - 2 2 i 2
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sequent year. The faculty embraces ten professors, two lecturers, ten lectur-
ers on special subjects, and one demonstrator, During the preliminary term
there are engaged thirteen lecturers and one demonstrator (mostly professors
and lecturers of the reguiation lecture term), and nine clini asaistants.
(See p. 1057.)

240 New York HommoraTHIC MEDICAL CoLLEGE, New York City, L. L.
Danforth, M. D., Secretary, 149 W. Forty-fourth street. Organized in 1880.
The first class was duated in 1861. Classes bhave been graduated each
subsequent year. The faculty embraces tweuty-two professors, one assistant
professor, three lecturera, seven clinical assistants and instructors, and two
demonstrators. (See p. 375.)

241 BeLLEVUE HosPiTAL MEDICAL CoLLEGE, New York City. Austin Flint,
M. D., Secretary of the Faculty. Organized in 1861. The first class
was uated in 1862, Classes have been graduated each subsequent year.
The faculty embraces thirteen professors, seven professors of special depart-
ments, two lecturers, four demonstrators, seventeen assistants to chairs and
two prosectors. Fifteen lecturers give instruction during the spring term.
(See ﬁ) 971.)

Ew York MEDICAL COLLEGE AND HosPITAL FOR WoMEN—(Homao-
pathic), New York City. Clemence 8. Lozier, M. D., Desn, 103 W. Forty-
eighth street. Organized in 1868. The first class was graduated in 1864,
Classes have been graduated each subsequent year. The faculty embraces
fifteen profersors, one assistant professor, four lecturersand one demonstrator,

2424* BROOKLYN ACADEMY oF MEpICINE, Brooklyn. N. Y. (Auxillary to the
Eclectic Medical Bociety of the State of N, Y.) Incorporated, April 24th,
1865. Charter revoked about 1880.*

248  Ecrrctic MEpican CoiLLece oF THE Crry oF NEw Youg, New York
City. George W. Boskowitz, M. D., Dean, 1 Livingston Place. Organized
in 1886. The first class was graduated in 1866. Classes have been gradu-
ated each subsequent year. The faculty embraces eight professors, five lec-
turers and one demonstrator. (Note—The list of diplomas granted by this
-college was not obtained until that portion of the work preceding page 725
was printed ; names of physicians represented as being its graduates bave
‘not been verified io that part of book.) (See opp p. 954.)

244  Wouan's MEpICAL CoLLEGE OF THE NEW York INFIRMARY, New York
City. Emily Blackwell, M. D., Desn, 128 Becound ave. Organized in 1868.
The first class was graduated in 1870. Classes have been graduated each
subsequent year. The faculty embraces nine professors, four clinical pro-
{easora, four lecturers, two adjunct lecturers, one demonstrator and thirteen
nstructors.

245* New York Freg Meprcarn Corneck ror WoMeN, New York City.
Organized in 1871. Extinct, 1877.*

248  SBymracoee Uxiversity CoLLeae oF Mepiciwg, Byracuse, N. Y. Wil-
liam T. Plant, M. D., Registrar, 18 Harrison Btreet. Organized in 1872, as
the College of Physicians and Burgeons of Byracuse University. In 1876 it
assumed its present title. The Geneva Medical College, organized in 18886,
was merged into this institution. The first class was graduated in 18783.
Classes bave been graduated each subsequent year. The faculty embraces
eleven professors, five lecturers, three instructors, and & director anatomical
laboratory. (Seep. 1845.)

247 Tae RecEnTs oF THE UNIVERSITY OF NEW Yomrk Brate. Office at
Albm:ly. N. Y. From the law confarrln* the powers of granting diplomas,
passed in 1872, the following is taken: The regents of the University shall
not grant a diploma conferring the degree of Doctor of Medicine upon any
one who bas not, for at least three years after the age of sixteen, pursued the
study of medical sclence with some physician or surgeon duly authorized to
practice, and also attended two complete courses of all the lectures delivered
at an Incorporated medical college. The regents of the University in the
State of New York are authorized to appoint one or more boards of examiners

242

*As no list of the diplomas nied this college could be obtai all the names
Mm%ﬂwcn‘pmmmu;gumwmmnmmd
en




DIRECTORY OF THE UNITED BTATES, 113

in medicine, which shall consist of not less than seven regularly licensed phy-
gicians and surgeons in the State. This board shall examine all candidates,
referred to them by the chancellor, in anatomy, physiology, materia medica.
pathology, histology, clinical medicine, chemistry, surgery, midwifery and
therapeutlice. All persons who are over twenty-one years of age, of good
moral character, and can froduca to the chancellor satisfactory proof that
they have competent knowledge of all the branches of lesming taught in the
common schools of the State, and of the Latin isngmy?a, and have diligently
studied medicine for not less than three years, can apply to the chaucellor for
an examination by a board of examiners. The fee for examination shall be
$25. ‘The regents shall grant, to any candidate who has been recommended
by five members of the board of examiners, a diploma conferring the degree
ug Doctor of Medicine from the Universily of New York., 'Ten dollars must
be paid for this diploma.*

248* UwiTeEp BraTEs MEDICAL CoLLEGE—(Edclectic), New York City. Orgac-
ized in 1878. Extioct.®

249* CoLLEGE OF PHYBICIANS AND SURGEON8 OF BUFFALO, Buffalo, N. Y.
Organized in 1879. The first class was graduated in 1880. No class was
graduated in 1882, Extinct.®

250 Niacara UniversiTy, MEDICAL DEPARTMENT, Buffalo, N. Y. A. A.
Hubbell, M. D., Secretary, 212 Franklin Street. Organized in 1888. The
first class was graduated in 1884. The faculty embraces eleven professors,
four lecturers, two demonstrators, and three assistants to the chaire of Obstet-
rics, Burgery and Materia Mediea.

251* Hryoreo-TEERAPEUTIC CoLLEGE oF NEW Yorg, New York City. Char-
tered 1856. Extinct 1866.*

NORTH CARCLINA.

252*  UnrversitY oF NoRTH CARoLINA, MEDICAL DeErarTMENT, Chapel Hill,
N. C. Organized in 1788. This school only gives instruction In medicine,
and does not now grant degrees. It granted diplomas in former years.*

253* Mepicar CoLLEeE 1N RomEson County, N. C. Extinct.*

254* LeoNARD MEprcaL Scmoon, Medical Department of S8haw University,
Raleigh, N. C. C. 8. Pratt, M. D., Dean. Rev. H. M. Tupper, A. HY
President of the University, Organized in 1882, for the education of colore
students. First class was graduated in 1884. The faculty consists of six
profeasors.* :

OHIO.

255  MepicaL CoLLEGE oF OHIo, Cincinnati, 0. James G. Hyadman, M. D.,
Becretary, 22 W. Ninth Street; W. W, Seely, A. M., M. D., Dean. Organ-
ized in 1810. The first class was uated in 1821. Classes have been grad-
uated each subsequent year. . In the Miami Medical Cnlleie was merged
into this institution, and continued in this relation until 1865, when the Miami
was re established. The faculty embraces ten professors, nine assistants to
chairs, three lecturers and three demonstrators.

23%*  WorTHIRGTON MEDICAL CoLLEGE (Helectic). Medical Department of
Ohio University, Worthioglon, 0. Organized in 1832, Removed to Cin-
cinnati in 1848. Classes were graduated in 1834, 1835, 1838, 1887 and 1888,
In 1845 the name was changed, and it became the Eclectic Medical Institute. *

25T Tug CiNcINRATI MEDICAL COLLEGE, Cincinnati, 0. Organized in 1834,
Merged into the Medical College of Ohio in 1846.*
28* WrnLovesBy UwiversiTy, MEDIcAL DePARTMENT, Willoughby, Lake

County, O. Organized in 1885. Merged into Starling Medical College,
Columbue, O.. in 1847.%

*ds mo list the diplomas nied by this college could be obta 1 the
m%q (nTihe fotlowing Dages, ang vepresented as being s graduaten hase
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2590* Paveio Mepical. CoLLEGE, Ciocionati Literary and Sclentific Institute,
Cincinnati, O, Organized in 1850, to succeed the Botanico-Medical College.
Graduated classes until 1880. Extionct.*®

260* AmeriCaN MEebicar CoLLEae (Eelectie), Cincinnati, Ohlo. Organized
in 1839. Merged into the Eclectic Medical Institute in 1857.%

2604* Bortarico-MepicaL CoLLEGE oF OHio, Cincinnati, 0. Organized, 1840.
Name changed to Physio-Medical College in 1850.%

281 WesTERN RESERVE UNIVERSITY, MEDICAL DEPARTMENT, Cleveland Medi-
cal College, Medical Department of Adelbert Callege of the Western Reserve
University, Cleveland, O. Gustav C. E. Weber, M. D., Dean; H. H, Powell,
M. D., Secretary, 117 Euclid avenue, Organized in 1843, as the Medical
Department of the Western Reserve College. Re-organized in 1881, when
the name became the Medical Department of Adelbert College. In 1884 the
former and present titlle was resumed. The first class was graduated in 1844.
Classes have been graduated in each subsequent year. The faculty embraces
fourteen profesaors, one Jecturer and one demonstrator,

Remagwa: Ino 1884 Dr. Pirxer, the Bacm?-u-r{. furnished to the Illinois State
Board of Health the following historical information: In 1881, Mr. AMasa BronE, of Cleve-
land, donated $500,000 to the Western Reserve University, then at Hudson, O, on condi-
tion that the name should be changed to Adelbert College of Wostern Reserve Unlversity.
the college be removed to Cleveland. About the same time the Cleveland Medical
College and the Medlcal De; ment of Wooster University united as the Medical Depart-
ment of Weatern Resarve niventéy. Through Mr. StunE's efforts the bill of incorpora-
tion, passed In 1881, cha thig title to the Medlcal Department of Adelbert College of
e BT AR i s dath o Bl St o v of
reaant y ] £ egree of the t of
WJem‘Mene Unlversity was conferred upon all duates of thé Cleveland Medlcat
cul.lege.iand upon such gnd‘:aamof the Wooater Medical Department previous to 1681 as
.

262 EcrecTic MEDICAL INsTITUTE, Cincinnati, O. John M. Scudder, M, D,,
228 Court Bt. Organized in 1845, as the successor of the Worthington Medi-
cal College (organized in 1882). The American Medical College was merged
into this school in 1857, and the Eclectic College of Medicine and Burgery in
1859. The first class was graduated in 1845, and two or more classes have
been graduated each subsequent year. The faculty embraces eight profes-
sors and a demonstrator; the professor of pathology and the practice of med-
icine also lectures upon hygiene, and the professor of surgery lectures upon
medical jurisprudence.

268  BSrarLING MEDICAL CoLLEGE, Columbus, O. Thomas C. Hoover, M. D.,
Registrar, 229 Eaat State Btreet; Btarling Loving, M. D., Dean. Organized
in 1847. The first class was graduated in 1848, and classes have been grad-
uated in each subsequent year. The faculty embraces eleven professors, one
lecturer and one demonstrator,

2084* HomeoraTHIC CoLLEGE FOR WoMEN, Cleveland, O. Merged into the
Homeeopathic Heapilal College of Cleveland, O., 1870.*

264 HouEoraTHiCc HosPITAL COLLEGE oF CLEVELAND, 0. Q. J. Jones, M.
D., Registrar, 81 Public Bquare. Organized in 1849, as the Western College
of Homceopathic Medicine. In 1857 the name was changed to the Western
Homaopathic College, and in 1870 the corporation assumed the present title.
In 1870 the Homozopathic College for Women was merged loto this institu-
tion. The first class was graduated in 1850. Classes have been graduated
each subsequent year. The faculty embraces ten professors, one adjunct pro-
feasor, five lecturers and one demonstrator, (See p. 1009.)

285 CIincINRATI COLLEGE OF MEDICINE AND SBURGRERY, Cincinnati, 0. J. H.
Hazard, M. D., SBecretary, 184 George Street. Organized in 1851, The first
class was graduated in 1852, and one or more classes have been graduated
each subsequent year. The faculty embraces seven professors, seven asso-
clate professors and one demonstrator. (See p. 1007.)

*As no list of the diplomas granted by this college could be obiai all the names of
physicians a 5 ng in the following pages, and represented as being {ls graduates, hove
nof been verified.
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208 Miamn MepIcAL CorLEGr, Cincinnatl, 0, Wm. H. Taylor, M. D., Dean,
820 West Beventh St. Orgapized in 1852. Classes were grsduated in 18538
t0 1857, inclusive. In1 this college was merged into the Medical College
of Ohio. In 1865 the Miami Medics% College wus re-established and a class
was uated in 1888, since which time classes have been graduated
annually. The faculty embraces eleven professors, two lecturers, eight
assistanta to chairs, three demonstrators and one pharmacist. (See p. 1005.)

67T Ecnecric CoLLeEak oF MEDicINE AND Bureery, Cinclionati, 0. Organ-
ized in 1856. Classes were graduated in 1857, 1858 and 1859. Merged lnto
the Eclectic Medical Institute in 1859, ®

268* Pavsio-MepicaL INsTITUTE, Cincinpati, 0. The first class was grad-
uated in 1880. Extinct, 1885.*

20  UxiversiTY oF WoosTER, MEDICAL DEPARTMENT, Cleveland, 0. Wm
T. Corlett, M. D., Registrar, 148 Euclid ave. Organized in 1864, as the
Charity Hospital Medical College. It was transferred to its present connec-
tion in 1870. The first class was graduated in 1885. One or more classes
have been graduated in each subsequent year, excepting 1881. The faculty
embraces fourteen professors, two assistants to chairs and one demonstrator.

209{* ZAwEsvILLE AcADEMY oF MEebpICINE, Zanesville, 0. Incorporated 1872.
Extinct, 1882.*

270  Poure Mepican Corrrae (Homeopathic), Cincinpati, 0. J. M. Craw-
ford, M. D., Registrar, 138 W, Eighth street. Organized in 1872. The first
class was graduated in 1878. Classes bave been graduated each subsequent
year. The faculty embraces twelve professors, three lecturers and two
demonstrators, (See p. 1003.)

271* Awmericark Hearte Conpeer, Cincinnati, O. Organized in 1874-'86.%

2 Corumeus MepicaL Conreer, Columbus, O. J. M. Dunbam, A. M.,
M. D., Becretary, 198 East Town street. Organized in 1875. The first class
wae graduated in 1878. (Classes have been graduated each subsequent

. The faculty embraces twelve profeasors, three lecturers, one demon-
strator of anatomy, one demonstrator of chemistry and three assistants.

278* Pavsio-EcLectic MepicaL CoLLEGE, Cincinnati, O, Organized in 1876.
Extinct. In 1879 the name was changed to the American Eclectic Medical
College, and a new charter waa obtained.®

2714* AumericAn Ecrecric Mepicar CoLLege—1870-1882, Cincinnati, O.
%‘;g?nizid in 1879, as the auccessor of the Physio-Eclectic Medical College.

tinet,

275* ToLepo BcHooL oF Mebpicing, Toledo, 0. Organized In 1878, as a
school of instruction only, and did not confer degrees. It held three sessions
and was then suspended. Bee Northwestern Ohio Medical College.®

AuericAN EcreEctic MebpicaL CoLLEae—18838, Cincionati, 0. B. K.
Maltby, M. D., Dean, 192 W, Fifth street. Organized in 1888, as the suc-
cessor of the institution of the same name, above described. The faculty
embraces eleven professors. (See p. 1247.)

217  Tonepo MepicAL CoLLecE, Toledo, O. J. H. Pooley, M. D,, Becre-
tary, corner Buperior and Monroe streets, Organized in 1882. The first class
was graduated in 1888, The faculty embraces thirteen professors, two lec-
turers and two demonstrators. (Jes p. 1011.)

278 NomrrEwesTERN OHro Mebicar Conrrer, Toledo, 0. C. A. Kirkley,
M. D., Becretary, 71 and 78 Lagrange street. Organized in 1888. This col-
lege i8 an outgrowth of the Toledo 8chool of Medicine. The faculty
embraces thirteen professors, two lecturers and one demonstrator, (Ses p. 1018.)

2T* (CoLnLece oF PHYSICIARS AXD Suraroxns, Columbus, 0. No definite
information.*

*ds no list the diplomas ed by this college could be oblai all the names of
M =z hmfotm';pagu,m”premedmbeiw graduates, have
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OREGON.

280 WiLLAMETTE UNIvERSITY, MEDICAL DEPARTMENT, Portland, Or, E. P,
Frazer, M. D., Dean. Organized in 1864, and located at Balem. It was
removed to Portland in 1878. The firat class waa graduated in 1867. Classes
have been graduated in each subsequent year. The facully embraces eleven
professors and one demonstrator.

PENNSYLVANIA.

281  DEPARTMENT OF MEDICINE oF THE UNIVERSITY OF PENNSYLVANIA,
Philadelphia, Pa. James Tyson, M. D., Secretary, P. O. Box 2838, Orian-
ized in 1765, as the Department of Medicine of the College of Philadelphis,
the sixth in the order of succession of American colleges, being chartered
chiefly through the influence of Dr. Benjamin Franklin and Dr.
William Bmith. The frst medical diploma {issued in America was

ranted to Dr. John Archer. in 1768, by this Department, then known as

e College of Medicine in Philudelphia. On the organization of the Uni-
versity of Pennsylvania, in 1782, the college assumed its present title and rela-
tions, the successor of the College of Philadelphia. Classes have been grad-
uated each 53&1‘ since 1768, except in 1772 to 1779 inclusive, during the war
of Independence. The faculty embraces eighteen professors, one assistant
professor, twenty-four demonstrators, flve lecturers, seven instructors and a
prosector of anatomy. (S p. 981.)

288  JerrEr2oN Meprical CoLLrGE, Philadelphia, Pa. Roberts Bartholow,
M. D, L. L. D, Dean, 1525 Locust street. Organized in 1828 as the
Medical Department of the Jefferson College at Canonsburg, Pa. Subse-
quently 8 charter was granted by the Legislature of the State, same as that
given to the University of Pennsylvania, under which it bas since been con-
tinuously in operation. The first class was %raduated in 1827, Classes have
heen graduated in each subsequent year. The faculty embraces eight pro-
fussors, one lecturer and eight demonstrators. (8ez p. 983.)

288  HARNEMANN Mebicar CorrecE (Hemamopathic), Fhiladelphis., Pa. A.
R. Thomas, M, D., Dean, 1788 Chestnut street, Organized in 16848. The
firat class was graduated 1849, Classes have been graduated in each subse

uent year. The faculty embraces ten professors, iwo lecturers and five
emonstrators, (See p. 985.)

284 Womaxr's Mebpicar, CoLLEGE oF PENNsYLvANIA, Philadelphia, Pa.
Rachel L. Bodley, M. D., Dean, North College Avenue and Twenty-first
street, Organized in 1850. The first class was graduated in 1851, Classes
have been graduated in each subseguent year. The faculty embraces ten
professors, nine lecturers, three instructors, four demonstrators, a curator of
museum and prosector. (See p. 1359.)

285* PENNSYLVARIA Mepicar CoLnEcg, Philadelphia, Pa. Organized in
1889, as the Medical Department of the Pennsylvania College, at Gettysburgh,
I:?r Dr. George McClellan. In 1859 it me with the Philadelphia College
of Medicine and Surgery, the faculty of the latter becoming the faculty of
the former under the name of the former., It closed in 1861 on account of
the confused state of the country, and the desire of many of the professors to
enter the medical staff of the army. Extinecl.*

286* PHmLADELPHIA COLLEGE OF MEDICINE AND BUrGERY, Philadelphia, Pa.
Organized in 1846 by Dr. James R. McClintock, and in 1859 it was merged
into the Pennsylvania Medical College.*

FrAWELIN MepicaL CoLLeaE, Philadelphia, Pa. Organized in 1847,
Existed until 1852. Extioct.*

288* PrNN MEDICAL Unrvererry, Philadelphia, Pa. Chartered February 2d,
1858, Lectures were delivered until about 1887. Reorganized, 1874.
Extinct, 1881.*

L/ list of the I i llege conld be all the
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%0 Hom@oraraic MepicaL CoLLEGE, Philadelphia, Pa. Organized in 1848.°
On April 2, 1889, the faculty of this inatitution united with the faculty of the
Hahnemann Medical College of Philadelphia, under the latter title,

200* EcrLecTic MEDICAL CoOLLEGE OF PENNsYLVANIA, Philadelphia, Pa.
Organized in 1856. Extinct, 1880.%

201* ParLapeELPHEIA UNIVERSITY OF MEDICINE AND SUnGERY, Philadelphia,
Pa. Incorporated, 1859. Extinct, 1880.*

208* AMERICARK UNIVERSITY OF PENNSYLVANIA (Helectic), Philadelphia, Pa.
Incorporated, 1867. Extinct, 1880.*

* ELECTROPATHIC INsTITUTE, Philadelphia, Pa. Chartered June 27, 1876.
M J. Galloway, M. D., Secretary.®

204 Mepico-CairurcicaL CoLLEGE oF PHILADELPHIA, Philadelphia, Pa.
Peter D. Keyser, A. M, M. D., Dean, 1680 Arch street. Organized in 1881.
The first class was frn.dusted.ln 1882. The faculty embraces ten professors
and an adjunct faculty of lecturers and chiefs of clinics, numbering
thirteen. (8ee p. 989.)

RHODE ISLAND.

205* Brown Univereiry, Mepicar DeparTMERT, Providence, R. I. Organ-
ized in 1811. Lectures were delivered and classes graduated anpually, from
1814 to 1827, inclusive, excepting the years 1820-21, when it is believed that

. 1o classes were graduated. Extinct, 1827.*

SOUTH CAROLINA.

206* MepicaL CoLLeoE oF SoUTH CAROLINA, Charleston, 8 C. Organized In
1824; charter obtained in 1828. Permanently closed in 1839, uring 18
existence its graduates amounted to 818.*

297 MebicaL CoLLEGE oF THE BrATE oF SovurH CAroLiNA, Charleston, B. C.
J. Ford Prioleau, M. D., Dean, 2 Glebe street. Organized in 1833, In 1889
the Medical College of SBouth Carolina became extinct, and the Medical Col-
lege of the State of Bouth Carolina received the bulldings and other property
of the former, Classes were gradusted anoually until 1862, when operations
were suspended during the war, and until 1865, when they were resumed.
Classea have been graduated annually since 1885. The faculty embraces
saven professors, two demonstrators and five auxiliary instructors.*

298* UNIVERSITY OF BoUTH CAROLINA, MEDICAL DEPARTMENT, Columbia, 8.
C. Organized in 1886. Extinct.*

TENNESSEE.

20  UsiversiTY oF NASEVILLE AND VANDEREBILT UNIvERSITY, MEDICAL
DerarTMENTS, Nashville, Teon. W. L. Nichol, M. D., Registrar, cor. Cedar
and Hi&h sts. Organized in 1850, as the Medical Department of the Univer-
sity of Nashville, and assumed its present relation in 1874. The first class
was graduated by the University of Nashville in 1852; and the first diploma
was issued by the Vanderbilt University in 1875. Classes have been grad-
uated annually by the respective Universities since these dates. The faculty
embraces ten profeasors, seven lecturers and two demonatrators.

300* Mesmram Mepical CoLLEee (Medical Department, Cumberland Univer-
sity), Memphis, Tenn. Organized in 1845. Buspended from 1881 to 1888,
during the War of the Rebellion. Reorganized in 1868. Courses of lectures
were delivered until 1878. Extioct.*

31  NasavirLe Mepicar Correee (Medical Department of the University of
Tennessee), Nashville, Tenn. Duncan Eve, M. D., Dean, 801 Church street.
Organized in 1878. Became connected with the University of Tennessee in
1880 The first class was graduated in 1878, Classes have been graduated
each subsequent year. The faculty embraces twelve professors and three-
demonstrators.

the this could be obtai: all the
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802  MenrARRY MEDICAL DEPARTMENT OF CENTRAL TENNESEE COLLEGE,
Nashville, Tenn. G. W. Hubbard, M. D., Dean. Organized in 1878. The
first class was uated in 1877. Classes have graduated each subsequent
year. Dew to the education of eolored students, male and female. The
faculty embracea six professors, one assistant professor and one demonstrator.

803* BoraNic MEDICAL CoLLEGE, Memphis, Tenn. Organized in 1846 and
became extinct in 1880.%

804* Meupars HosriTAL MeDICAL CoLLEGE (Medical Department Southwest-
ern Baptlst University), Memphis, Tenn, A. G. Sinclair, M. D. Dean.
Organized in 1880. The first class was graduated in 1881. The faculty
embraces ten professors and one demonstrator,*

TEXAS,

805* GaLveaToN MEDICAL COLLEGE, Galvesion, Texas. Organized in 1864 as
the Medical Department of Boule University. Reorganized in 1878, when it
meld‘ita present name, The last course of lectures was delivered in

UTAH.
806* Mepican INeTITUTION OF MORGAN Crry, Morgan City, U. T. Extinct.*

YERMONT.

807 UniversiTy oF VErRMONT, MEDICAL DEPARTMENT, Burlington, Vt. A,
P. Grinpell, M. D, Dean. Organized in 1822, The first class was graduated
in 1828. Bessions were held, and classes graduated, annually, oxcepting in
1885, until 1887, when the sessions were suspended. In 1854 the D tment
was reorganized., A class was graduated in 1834, and in each subsequent
year. The faculty embraces fourteen professors, one assistant professor,
seven instructors, ene demonstrator and one curator.

808* VermoNT MEDICAL CoLLEGE, Woodstock, Vt. Organized in 1827, under
the name of the Clinical School of Medicine, by Dr. Joseph A. Gallup, and
was under his management until 1835. For several years the degrees were
conferred by the Waterville College, Maine. In 1880 an arrangement was
made with the Middlebury College, Yermont. and the degrees were conferred
by that institution up to 1836. 1n 1835 the Btate Legislature passed an act
incorporating the Vermont Medical College. By this act the Supreme Court
wasa directed to appoint a Board of Examiners. The school was quite proa-
perous and well patronized; had a strong faculty and more than one hundred
students in 1850-51-52-38. Professor B. R. K‘a]mnr. Dean of the Faculty
and Professor of Anatomy. removed to Louisville, Kentucky, in 1854. In
1856 the school became extinct.*

809  CasTLETON MEDICAL CoLLEGE, Castleton, Vt. The Btate by an act passed
October 20th, 1818, granted a charter to the Castleton Medical Academy.
The first course of lectures under this charter was commenced November
15th, 1818, In 1821, name was chan to Vermont Academy of Medicine.
S1m)ended in 1888, reorganized in 1839, and name changed to the Castleton
Medical College in 1841. Extinct since 1861.

YIRGINIA.

810  Uwiversrry oF VIRGINIA, MEDICAL DEPARTMENT, Charlottesville, Alber-
marle County. James F. Harrison, M. D., Chairman of Faculty. Organized
in 1825. The firat clasa graduated in July, 1828, There was.no graduating
class in 1862. The faculty embraces five professors and a demonstrator of
snatomy.

811* MEeDICAL BCHOOL OF THE VALLEY OF VIRGINIA, Winchester, Va. Ol;gnll-
ized in 1828. Lectures were probably delivered until the breaking out of the
war, 1861, although no information is at hand regarding the date of its
extinction.®

list diplomas m-mummuoowhdzaumm
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312 MebicaL CouLece oF VimeiNia, Richmond, Va. M. L. James, M. D.,
Dean of the Faculty. Organized in 1838, as the Medical Department of
Hampden Sidney College, under which name it continued uatil 1854, when
8 new charter was obtained and the present name assumed. The first class
was graduated in 1840. Classes have been graduated each subsequent year.
The faculty embraces eight professors, and nine adjunct profeasors and one
demonstrator. (See p. 1305.)

WASHINGTON TERRITORY.

3124* UmiversiTY oF WasHiNaTON TERRITORY, MEDICAL DEPARTMENT, Seattle,
W. T. J.C. Bundberg. M. D., Becretary of the Faculty. Organized 1885.
The faculty embraces nine professors.*

WISCONSIN.

313* MiLwauxee CoLLEGE oF PEYsICIANS AND Surceoxs, Milwaukee, Wis,
Incorporated 1881. Charter Annulled October, 1883.*

CANADA—Ontario.

381*  Toronto Beaoon or Mepicing (affiliated with the University of Toronto
and the University of Victoria College), Toronto, Ont. H. H. Wright. M. D,,
Becretary, corner 8herbourne and Gg:n'urd streets. Organized in 1843. In-
corporated by act of Parliament, 1851. Degrees were first conferred upon
its students by afflliated universities, in 1845. Degrees have been 8o conferred
each subsequent year. Faculty embraces twelve professors (lecturers), two
adjunct professors and two demonstrators.®

32  ToroNTO UNIVERSITY, MEDICAL Facurry, Toranto, Ont. Organized in
1843, as the Medical Faculty of King's College. Boon after its organization
the name was changed to the Medical Faculty of the University of Toronto.
The Faculty was paid by the State. After an existence of ten years, the en-
dowed chairs were abolished by an Act of Legislature, and in 1852 the school
became extinet ; but the University of Toronto still grants medical degrees.

83  Trmirry Mepical ScrHoor (affiliated with the University of Trinity
College, the University of Toronto and the University of Manitoba), Toronto.
Ont. W. B. Geikie, M. D., C. M., Dean, 824 Jarvis street. Organized In
1850, as the Upper Canada Bchool of Medicine, which, in ita first session, be-
came the Medical Faculty of Trinity College, and after an existence of four
years, ended b{_tha resignation of lie professors. ®* * *In 1870, the Faculty
of Medicine of Trinity College was re-organized. and it exists now as a separate

mrgr:tinn under the above title. The school confers the degree of "‘Fellow

by mination of Trinity Medieal Behool,” which is ** in every respect the
uivalent of M. B.,, M. D. or M. D., M. C,, at Trinity College."—GERIKIE.
'he faculty embraces ten professors, two lecturers and two demonstrators.

334  RovaL Coriree or Pavsicians anp Burceeoxs (affilisted with Queen's
University), Kingston, Ont. Fife Fowler, M. D., L. R, C. 8., Edin., Presi-
dent of the Faculty. Organized as the Medical!Faculty of Queen’s University
in 1854, First clasa graduated in 1855, and classes uated in each subse-
quent year. Being separately incorporated, the college confers the diplomas
of ““ Licentiate ” and ** Fellow.” Its students obtain the degree of M. D. and
C. M., from the Queen’s University, upon passing the required examination.
The faculty embraces eight professors and three demonstrators.

33* WesTErx UNIVERSITY, MEDICAL DEPARTMENT, London,Ont. H. Amott,
M. B, Registrar, 284 Queen’s avenue. Organized 1882. First class gradu-
ated in 1888. Faculty embraces fifteen professors and thres demonstrators of
apatomy.*

all
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